
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                     (June 24, 2025) (Week 26 of 2025) 

                                     
I                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

                                                                                                   
      
Daniel A. Bittinger II          Kent T. Carper             David L. Dietrich        Mark E. Nelson          Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         570-7681                         870-9224                       540-1259                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        kcarper@woodburycountyiowa.gov          ddietrich@woodburycountyiowa.gov    mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov      matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 

You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held June 24, 2025, 
at 4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa, for the purpose of 
taking official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly 
come before the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. 
Members of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board 
of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board.  
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation 
on concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place 
after properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when 
approved by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a 
subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 
 

4:30 p.m.   Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence   

        
                   1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                Action                       
 

                Consent Agenda 

        Items 2 through 6 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one 

motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member.   

                  

                   2.  Approval of the minutes of June 17, 2025, meeting 

 

                   3.  Approval of claims   

 

                   4.  County Treasurer – Tina Bertrand 

                        Approval of resolution approving abatement of taxes for Woodbury County, Iowa 

 

                   5.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                        a.  Approval of the Memorandum of Personnel Transactions 

                        b.  Authorization to Initiate Hiring Process 

                        c.  Approval of request to deauthorize county positions 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7QQ0sePQEtI
https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.
mailto:kcarper@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:ddietrich@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

 

                  6.  Woodbury Soil & Water Conservation District 

                       Approval of 28E Agreement between Woodbury County, Iowa and Woodbury Soil & Water              

                       Conservation District for funding and management of a watershed inspection and maintenance   

                       program in Woodbury County, Iowa 

                                     

End of Consent Agenda 

 

                  7.  Board Administration – Ryan Ericson 

                       Approval of resolutions for Inter-Fund Operating Transfers for FY 2026                            Action                            

 

                  8.  Board Administration – Heather Van Sickle 

 4:35 p.m.      Public hearing and sale of property parcel #894730426002 (aka 2021 W. 1st St.)             Action 

(Set time)                     

 

                 9.   Planning/Zoning – Daniel Priestley  
4:40 p.m.        a.  Conduct 3rd and final public hearing on the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment         Action 
(Set time)             (Rezone) from Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the General Industrial (GI) Zoning 
                             District on parcel #864629351012 for New Cooperative, Inc. 
                       b.  Approve the 3rd Reading as the final reading of the Zoning Ordinance Map                  Action 
                            Amendment (Rezone)    
                       c.  Adopt the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from Agricultural                    Action 
                            Preservation (AP) to the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District on parcel  
                            #864629351012 for New Cooperative, Inc.          
 
               10.  Planning/Zoning – Daniel Priestley 
4:45 p.m.      a.  Conduct the 2nd public hearing for a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to revise        Action 
(Set time)           the Land Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses (Section 3.03.4), to classify “Borrow 
                           pits for earth materials” as a conditional use within the Agricultural Estates (AE) 
                          Zoning District 
                      b.  Approve the 2nd Reading of the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment                             Action 
 
              11.  Sioux City Fire Rescue – Mary Chwirka 
                     Approval of $3,510 from the Opioid Settlement Fund for Sioux City Fire Rescue                Action 
                     to purchase from SafeBVM a SotairIQ trainer and a supply of the Sotair BVM 
                     devices 
 
              12.  Woodbury County Fire Association – Devan Amick 
                     Approval to fund a mental health speaker for first responders in the amount of $5,000       Action 
 
              13.  Board of Supervisors – Daniel Bittinger & Mark Nelson 
                     Approval to carryover 80 hours vacation for K.S. to be used within the next year                Action 
 
              14.  Secondary Roads – Laura Sievers 
                     Approval to amend Woodbury County Secondary Roads Department Five Year                 Action 
                     Construction Program to allow two bridges to become grant eligible 
 
              15.  Board of Supervisors – Matthew Ung 
                    Approval of retroactive supplemental pay for extra duties performed to the employee          Action 
                    filling the appointed deputy auditor position from 8-21-24 to 1-1-25 
    
              16.  Board of Supervisors – Daniel Bittinger 
                     a.  Approval of letter of support for Agape Community Services                                           Action 
                     b.  Approval of letter of support for Moville Community Development Authority Inc.             Action  
   
              17.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                                  Information     
                                                      



 

              18.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                          Information 
 
 
              19.  Board Concerns                                                                                                           Information 
   
      

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Subject to Additions/Deletions 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS                                                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                                                               
MON., JUN 23         5:00 p.m.     Zoning Commission Meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom            

WED., JUN25          2:30 p.m.     Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 

THU., JUN 26        11:00 a.m.     Siouxland Regional Transit Systems (SRTS) Board Meeting, 6401 Gordon Dr. 

                                5:30 p.m.     SIMPCO Board of Directors 60th Annual Board Meeting & Award Ceremony, The   

                                                    Warrior Hotel 

 
WED., JUL 2          7:30 a.m.     SIMPCO Executive/Finance Committee, 6401 Gordon Drive   

                               4:45 p.m.     Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.   

MON., JUL 7         5:00 p.m.      Board of Adjustment meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom                                                                

WED., JUL 9         7:30 a.m.      SIMPCO Executive Finance Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordon Drive 

                              8:05 a.m.      Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 

                           12:00 p.m.      District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St. 

                             6:30 p.m.      911 Service Board Meeting, Public Safety Center, Climbing Hill                    

THU., JUL 10       4:00 p.m.     Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 

WED., JUL 16   12:00 p.m.      Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 

                            1:30 p.m.      Region IV LEPC Meetings, SIMPCO, 6401 Gordon Dr. 

THU., JUL 17      4:30 p.m.     Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   

FRI., JUL 18     12:00 p.m.      Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave.                                                                                                 

WED., JUL 23    2:30 p.m.      Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 

MON., JUL 28    5:00 p.m.      Zoning Commission Meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom         

THU., JUL 24                      Western Iowa Community Improvement Regional Housing Trust Fund                                                                            

                                           Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon, Dr.  

                                                              

Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable 
accommodations for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the 
Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national 
origin, pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil 
Rights Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to 
access the Iowa Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



 

 

JUNE 17, 2025, TWENTY-FIFTH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS   
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, June 17, 2025, at 4:30 p.m. Board members present were Carper, Bittinger II, 
Dietrich, Ung, and Nelson. Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Melissa Thomas, 
Human Resources Director, Ryan Ericson, Budget and Finance Director, Joshua Widman, Assistant County Attorney and 
Michelle Skaff, Auditor/Clerk to the Board.  
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
 
1. Motion by Bittinger second by Carper to approve the agenda for June 17, 2025. Carried 5-0. Copy filed. 
 

Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve the following items by consent: 
 
2. To approve minutes of the June 10, 2025 meeting. Copy filed. 
    
3. To approve the claims totaling $794,718.34. Copy filed. 
 
4a. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution approving abatement of taxes for Rodger/Mari 

Yudka, Vin #MY9411523V, 1994 Northern. 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,909 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ABATEMENT OF TAXES 
 

WHEREAS, Rodger/Mari Yudka is the titleholder of a mobile home 

                VIN #MY9411523V located in Woodbury County, Iowa and legally described as follows: 
                 VIN #MY9411523V Year/Model 1994 Northern 

 
WHEREAS, the above-stated mobile home has taxes payable including special 
assessments and the mobile home is owned by Rodger/Mari Yudka 
 

WHEREAS, these taxes are uncollectable or impractical to pursue collection through personal 
judgment or tax sale. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors sees that good cause exists for the abatement of these taxes 
and; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors hereby 
abates the taxes owing on the above mobile home according to Code of Iowa, 445.16 for the 
taxes owed and hereby directs the Woodbury County Treasurer to abate these aforementioned 
taxes from the tax records. 

 
SO RESOLVED this 17 day of June, 2025 . 

 
WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                Copy filed. 
 
4b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution approving abatement of taxes for Yes Homesales 

Exp LLC, Vin #CL9353, 1977 Arc. 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,910 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ABATEMENT OF TAXES 
 

WHEREAS, Yes Homesales Exp LLC is the titleholder of a mobile home 



June 17, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         VIN #CL9353 located in Woodbury County, Iowa and legally described as follows 

          VIN #CL9353 Year/Model 
-
1
-
997

- 
A
-
rc 

          WHEREAS, the above-stated mobile home has taxes payable including special 
assessments and the mobile home is owned by Yes Homesales Exp LLC 

 

WHEREAS, these taxes are uncollectable or impractical to pursue collection through personal 
judgment or tax sale. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors sees that good cause exists for the abatement of these taxes 
and; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors hereby 
abates the taxes owing on the above mobile home according to Code of Iowa, 445.16 for the 
taxes owed and hereby directs the Woodbury County Treasurer to abate these aforementioned 
taxes from the tax records. 
 
 

SO RESOLVED this 17 day of June, 2025. 

 
               WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
               Copy filed. 
 
4c. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution approving abatement of taxes for David Hofer,  
 Vin #0567164260, 1976 Champion. 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,911 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ABATEMENT OF TAXES 
 

WHEREAS, _D_a_v i d_H_o_fe_r  is the titleholder of a mobile home 

                  VIN #0567164260 located in Woodbury County, Iowa and legally described as follows: 
               VIN #0567164260 Year/Model 1976 Champion 

      
WHEREAS, the above-stated mobile home has taxes payable including special 
assessments and the mobile home is owned by    D_a_vi_d_H_o_f_e_r 
 

WHEREAS, these taxes are uncollectable or impractical to pursue collection through personal 
judgment or tax sale. 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors sees that good cause exists for the abatement of these taxes 
and; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors hereby 
abates the taxes owing on the above mobile home according to Code of Iowa, 445.16 for the 
taxes owed and hereby directs the Woodbury County Treasurer to abate these aforementioned 
taxes from the tax records. 
 

 



June 17, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 3 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SO RESOLVED this 17 day of June, 2025. 

 
                WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
                Copy filed. 
 
5. To approve an application for a 12-month Class C Retail Alcohol License, for Abu Bekr Shrine, effective 06/21/25 

through 06/20/26. Copy filed. 
 
6a. To approve the separation of Marie Reyes, Custodian, Building Services Dept., effective 06-06-2025. Resigned; 

other, Jisleny Ventura Perez, Youth Worker-PT, Juvenile Detention Dept.; effective 06-09-2025, $22.05/hour, 0%. 
Transfer from Part-Time-Temp to Part Time; the appointment of James Keegan, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., 
effective 06-23-2025, $24.57/hour. Job Vacancy Posted on 4/3/25. Per CWA Civilian: Entry Level Salary $24.57/hr.; 
the appointment of Brendan Tripp, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 06-23-2025, $24.57/hour. Job 
Vacancy Posted on 4/16/25. Per CWA Civilian: Entry Level Salary $24.57/hr.; the reclassification of Sheila 
Henningfeld, Clerk III, County Sheriff Dept., effective 06-23-2025, $28.72/hour, 9%=$2.38/hr. Per AFSCME 
Courthouse: Move from Step 4 to Step 5. Anniversary date 7/4/25; the reclassification of Dean Lauters, Courthouse 
Safety & Security, County Sheriff Dept., effective 06-23-2025, $24.67/hour, 11%=$2.37/hr. Per AFSCME 
Courthouse-Move from Step 4 to Step 5. Anniversary Date: 7/5/25; and the separation of Kimberly Flanders, 
Custodian, Building Services Dept. Retired. Copy filed. 

 
6b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Custodian (2), 

Building Services Dept. AFSCME Courthouse: $17.81/hour; and for Youth Worker – PT Temp, Juvenile Detention. 
AFSCME Juvenile: $22.05/hour. Copy filed. 

 
7. To approve to reallocate the net amount of $9,064.54 from the projects of 25-COUNTY PCs, 25-SWITCHES, 25 

VULNRABLITY SOFTWARE, 25-iseries/AS400 Upgrade, 25-Scanner Standardization, and 25-Office 365 Backup to 
help fund the FY26 Enterprise/Edge-Firewalls ask. Copy filed. 

 
Carried 5-0.  
 
11. Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve to raise the Health Fund Employee Contribution Rates effective 

July 1, 2025.  Carried 5-0. Copy filed. 
 
8. A public hearing was held at 4:35 p.m. for the sale of parcel #894815480001, 1724 Whitcher Ave.  
 
 Motion by Nelson second by Bittinger to close the public hearing. Carried 5-0.  
 
 Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution for the sale of 

parcel #894815480001, 1724 Whitcher Ave., to Scattered and Sown Inc. 2320 S Royce St. Sioux City, for $750.00 
plus recording fees. Carried 5-0. 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,912 

 
    BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, that the offer at public auction of: 

 
By Scatter and Sown Inc.                                     ___in the sum of  Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars & 00/100 ($750.00)---
--------------------------------------------------dollars. 
 
For the following described real estate, To Wit: 



June 17, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
Parcel #894815480001 
Lot Sixteen (16), in Block Three (3), Edgewater Fourth Addition, City of Sioux City, Woodbury County, Iowa  
(1724 Whitcher Ave.) 

 
Now and included in and forming a part of the City of Sioux City, Iowa, the same is hereby accepted: said 

                Amount being a sum LESS than the amount of the general taxes, interests, costs and penalties against the said Real 
Estate. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that payment is due by close of business on the day of passage of this resolution or this sale is null 
and void and this resolution shall be rescinded. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that per Code of Iowa Section 569.8(3 & 4), a parcel the County holds by tax deed shall not be 
assessed or taxed until transferred and upon transfer of a parcel so acquired gives the purchaser free title as to 
previously levied or set taxes.  Therefore, the County Treasurer is requested to abate any taxes previously levied or 
set on this parcel(s). 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chairman of this Board be, and he is hereby authorized to execute a Quit Claim 
Deed for the said premises to the said purchaser. 
SO DATED this 17th Day of June, 2025. 

 
WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Copy filed. 

 
12a. Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve an Appropriation Resolution for FY 2026. Carried 5-0. 
  

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2026 
RESOLUTION #13,913 

  

WHEREAS, it is desired to make appropriations for each different officer or department for the fiscal year  
beginning July 1, 2025, in accordance with section 331.434, subsection 6, Code of 
Iowa,    

        
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, as follows:  

        
Section 1. The following amounts are hereby appropriated from the resources of the county to the department or office 
listed: 

 

Dept # Dept Name $ Amount 
01 BOS 25,859,636 
02 Auditor 434,915 
03 Treasurer 1,866,297 
04 Attorney 3,912,979 
05 Sheriff 21,526,215 
07 Auditor Record 848,647 
12 Econ Development 189,405 
16 Building Services 3,462,056 



June 17, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17 Juvenile Detention 2,269,610 
20 County Engineer 15,236,116 
21 Veterans Affairs 347,900 
22 Conservation 2,731,431 
24 Weed Commission 116,284 
28 Medical Examiner 518,000 
30 Clerk of Courts 356,000 
31 District Court 660 
32 Dept of Human Services 108,000 
33 County Library 328,717 
36 Ambulance 402,228 
40 Elections 766,508 
41 Emergency Services 784,295 
50 HR 432,689 
51 General Services 101,950 
52 WCICC 1,629,628 
60 Mental Health 205,345 
96 State of Iowa 75,000 

  84,510,510 
 

 
Section 2. Subject to the provisions of other county procedures and regulations, and applicable state law, 
the appropriations authorized under Section 1 shall constitute authorization for the department or officer 
listed to make expenditures or incur obligations, effective July 1, 2025 
   

Section 3. In accordance with Section 331.434, Code of Iowa, no department or officer shall expend  
or contract to expend any money or incur any liability, or enter into any contract which by its terms involves the 

expenditure of money for any purpose in excess of the amounts appropriated pursuant to the resolution. 
 

Section 4. If at any time during the 2025-2026 budget year, a department or office approaches a spending level 
challenging its appropriation level, the board shall be informed and appropriate action be recommended.   

This may include a possible budget amendment per 331.435.   

 

Section 5. All appropriations authorized pursuant to this resolution lapse at the close of business June 30, 2026. 

  
The above and foregoing resolution was adopted by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County on June 17, 

2025. 
  
 

 

 
WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Copy filed. 

 
9a. A public hearing was held at 4:40 p.m. to conduct 2nd public hearing on the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment 

(Rezone) from Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District on Parcel 
#864629351012 for New Cooperative, Inc.  

 
 Frank Huseman, New Cooperative, spoke in favor of the ordinance. 
 



June 17, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Motion by Nelson second by Bittinger to close the public hearing. Carried 5-0. Copy filed. 
 
9b.  Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve the second reading of the Zoning Ordinance Amendment 

(Rezone). Carried 5-0. Copy filed. 
 
 
10b. A public hearing was held at 4:45 p.m. to conduct 1st Public Hearing on the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. 
 
 Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to close the public hearing. Carried 5-0. Copy filed. 
 
10a. Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to receive final report-Zoning Commission recommendation for a Zoning 

Ordinance Text Amendment to revise the Land Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses (Section 3.03.4), to classify 
“Borrow pits for Earth materials” as a conditional use within the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District. Carried    
5-0. Copy filed. 

 
10c. Motion by Nelson second by Dietrich to approve the 1st Reading of the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. Carried 

5-0. Copy filed. 
 
12b. Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve a Resolution for Interfund Operating Transfers from the General  
 Supplemental to the General Basic Fund in the amount of $6,463,354. Carried 5-0. 
 

RESOLUTION FOR INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS 
RESOLUTION #13,914 

 

Whereas, it is desired to authorize the Auditor to periodically transfer sums from the General   

Supplemental to the General Basic Fund during the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budget year, and   

           

Whereas, said transfers must be in accordance with Section 331.432 Code of Iowa,    

           

Whereas, the purpose of the transfers are to fund the appropriations for the matching FICA, IPERS,  
Health Insurance, Life Insurance and LTD costs expended from the General Basic Fund.   

           

Now, therefore be it resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, as follows:   

           

The total maximum transfers from the General Supplemental Fund to the General Basic   

Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025, shall not exceed the sum of $ 6,462,354.   

           

The Auditor is directed to correct her books when said operating transfers are made and to notify  
the Treasurer of the amounts of said transfers.       

           

The above and foregoing resolution was adopted by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County  
Iowa, on June 17th, 2025.       

 
 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
                Copy filed. 
 



June 17, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motion by Nelson second by Bittinger to approve a Resolution for Interfund Operating Transfers from the Rural 
Basic Services Fund to the County Library Fund in the amount of $187,859. Carried 5-0. 

 
RESOLUTION FOR INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS 

RESOLUTION #13,915 
 

Whereas, it is desired to authorize the Auditor to periodically transfer sums from the Rural Basic  
Services Fund to the County Library Fund during the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budget year, and   

           

Whereas, said transfers must be in accordance with Section 331.432 Code of Iowa,    

           

Whereas, the purpose of the transfers are to move the taxes, levied on the township valuations, to   
the County Library Fund to pay their share of the expenses of the County Library.    

           

Now, therefore be it resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, as follows:   

           

The total maximum transfers from the Rural Basic Services Fund to the County Library Fund   

for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025, shall not exceed the sum of $ 187,859.    

           

The Auditor is directed to correct her books when said operating transfers are made and to notify  
the Treasurer of the amounts of said transfers.       

           

The above and foregoing resolution was adopted by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County  
Iowa, on June 17th, 2025.       

 
 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 

Motion by Nelson second by Dietrich to approve a Resolution for Interfund Operating Transfers from the Rural 
Basic Services Fund to the Secondary Roads Fund for 1,800,000. Carried 5-0.  

 
RESOLUTION FOR INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS 

RESOLUTION #13,916 
 

Whereas, it is desired to authorize the Auditor to periodically transfer sums from the Rural Basic  
Services Fund to the Secondary Roads Fund during the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budget year, and   

           

Whereas, said transfers must be in accordance with Section 331.432 Code of Iowa,    

           

Whereas, the purpose of the transfers are to move the taxes, levied on the township valuations, to   
the Secondary Roads Fund to pay their share of the expenses of the Secondary Roads Fund.   

           

Now, therefore be it resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, as follows:   

           



June 17, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The total maximum transfers from the Rural Basic Services Fund to the Secondary Roads Fund   

for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025, shall not exceed the sum of $ 1,800,000.    

           

The Auditor is directed to correct her books when said operating transfers are made and to notify  
the Treasurer of the amounts of said transfers.       

           

The above and foregoing resolution was adopted by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County  
Iowa, on June 17th, 2025.       

 
 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Copy filed. 
 
 Motion by Nelson second by Dietrich to approve a Resolution for Interfund Operating Transfers from the Rural  
 Supplemental Fund to the Rural Basic Fund for $76,500. Carried 5-0.  
 

RESOLUTION FOR INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS 
RESOLUTION #13,917 

 

Whereas, it is desired to authorize the Auditor to periodically transfer sums from the Rural Supplemental  
Fund to the Rural Basic Fund during the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budget year, and    

           

Whereas, said transfers must be in accordance with Section 331.432 Code of Iowa,    

           

Whereas, the purpose of the transfers are to fund the appropriations for the matching FICA, IPERS,  
Health Insurance, Life Insurance and LTD costs expended from the Rural Basic Fund.   

           

Now, therefore be it resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, as follows:   

           

The total maximum transfers from the Rural Supplemental Fund to the Rural Basic    

Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025, shall not exceed the sum of $ 76,500.    

           

The Auditor is directed to correct her books when said operating transfers are made and to notify  
the Treasurer of the amounts of said transfers.       

           

The above and foregoing resolution was adopted by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County  
Iowa, on June 17th, 2025.       

 
 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Copy filed. 
 

Motion by Nelson second by Bittinger to table approval of a Resolution for Interfund Operating Transfers from the 
Courthouse Maintenance Fund to the General Supplemental Fund for $200,000 until further research. Carried 5-0.  

 
 Copy filed. 
 



June 17, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 9 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motion by Nelson second by Bittinger to table a Resolution for Interfund Operating Transfers from the PILT Fund to 
the General Supplemental Fund in the amount of $29,915 until further research. Carried 5-0. 

 
 Copy filed. 
 
 Motion by Nelson second by Dietrich to approve a Resolution for Interfund Operating Transfers from the Tax  
 Increment Fund to the Debt Service Fund in the amount of $786,850. Carried 5-0. 
 

RESOLUTION FOR INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS 
RESOLUTION #13,918 

 

Whereas, it is desired to authorize the Auditor to periodically transfer sums from the Tax Increment Fund  
to the Debt Service Fund during the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budget year, and      

           

Whereas, said transfers must be in accordance with Section 331.432 Code of Iowa,    

           

Whereas, the purpose of the transfers are to move Tax Increment Fund revenues to the Debt Service Fund   
to pay FY 2025 principal and interest for the 2017 Tax Increment G.O.      

           

Now, therefore be it resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, as follows:   

           

The total maximum transfers from the Tax Increment Fund to the Debt Service Fund    

 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025, shall not exceed the sum of $ 786,850.    

           

The Auditor is directed to correct her books when said operating transfers are made and to notify  
the Treasurer of the amounts of said transfers.       

           

The above and foregoing resolution was adopted by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County  
Iowa, on June 17th, 2025.       

 
WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Copy filed. 

  
 Motion by Nelson second by Dietrich to approve a Resolution for Interfund Operating Transfers from Conservation 
 Reserve Fund to the General Basic Fund in the amount of $132,600. Carried 5-0. 
 

RESOLUTION FOR INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS 
RESOLUTION #13,919 

 

Whereas, it is desired to authorize the Auditor to periodically transfer sums from Conservation Reserve   
Fund to the General Basic Fund during the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budget year, and     

           
Whereas, said transfers must be in accordance with Section 331.432 Code of Iowa,    

           
Whereas, the purpose of the transfers are to move Conservation Reserve Fund revenues to the General  



June 17, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Basic Fund to reimburse the Browns Lake Project.       

           
Now, therefore be it resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, as follows:   

           
The total maximum transfers from the Conservation Reserve Fund to the General Basic Fund   
 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025, shall not exceed the sum of $ 132,600.    

           
The Auditor is directed to correct her books when said operating transfers are made and to notify  
the Treasurer of the amounts of said transfers.       

           
The above and foregoing resolution was adopted by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County  
Iowa, on June 17th, 2025.        

 
 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Copy filed. 
 
 Motion by Bittinger second by Dietrich to approve a Resolution for Interfund Operating Transfers from the Gaming  
 Revenue Fund to the Debt Service Fund in the amount of $300,000. Carried 5-0. 
 

RESOLUTION FOR INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS 
RESOLUTION #13,920 

 

Whereas, it is desired to authorize the Auditor to periodically transfer sums from the Gaming Revenue  
Fund to the Debt Service Fund during the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budget year, and    

           

Whereas, said transfers must be in accordance with Section 331.432 Code of Iowa,    

           

Whereas, the purpose of the transfers are to move Gaming Revenues to the Debt Service Fund   

for tax reduction,         

           

Now, therefore be it resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, as follows:   

           

The total maximum transfers from the Gaming Revenue Fund to the Debt Service Fund for the   

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025, shall not exceed the sum of $ 300,000.     

           

The Auditor is directed to correct her books when said operating transfers are made and to notify  
the Treasurer of the amounts of said transfers.       

           

The above and foregoing resolution was adopted by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County  
Iowa, on June 17th, 2025.       

 
 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Copy filed. 
 



June 17, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motion by Nelson second by Dietrich to approve a Resolution for Interfund Operating Transfers from the Local 
Option Sales Tax Fund to the Debt Service Fund in the amount of $300,000. Carried 5-0. 

 
RESOLUTION FOR INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS 

RESOLUTION #13,921 
 

Whereas, it is desired to authorize the Auditor to periodically transfer sums from the Local Option  
Sales Tax Fund to the Debt Service Fund during the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budget year, and   

           

Whereas, said transfers must be in accordance with Section 331.432 Code of Iowa,    

           

Whereas, the purpose of the transfers are to move Local Option Sales Tax revenues to the    

 Debt Service fund to reduce taxation.        

           

Now, therefore be it resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, as follows:   

           

The total maximum transfers from the Local Option Sales Tax Fund to the Debt Service Fund   

for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025, shall not exceed the sum of $ 300,000.    

           

The Auditor is directed to correct her books when said operating transfers are made and to notify  
the Treasurer of the amounts of said transfers.       

           

The above and foregoing resolution was adopted by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County  
Iowa, on June 17th, 2025.       

           
WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Copy filed. 

 
Motion by Bittinger second by Dietrich to approve a Resolution for Interfund Operating Transfers from the 
Secondary Road Fund to the Debt Service Fund in the amount of $300,000. Carried 5-0. 

 
RESOLUTION FOR INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS 

RESOLUTION #13,922 
 

Whereas, it is desired to authorize the Auditor to periodically transfer sums from the Secondary Road  
Fund to the Debt Service Fund during the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budget year, and    

           

Whereas, said transfers must be in accordance with Section 331.432 Code of Iowa,    

           

Whereas, the purpose of the transfers are to move Secondary Road revenues to the Debt Service Fund  
to pay FY 2025 principal and interest for the FY 2022 Secondary Gravel Project,    

           

Now, therefore be it resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, as follows:   

           



June 17, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 12 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The total maximum transfers from the Secondary Road Tax Fund to the Debt Service Fund for the   

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025, shall not exceed the sum of $ 300,000.     

           

The Auditor is directed to correct her books when said operating transfers are made and to notify  
the Treasurer of the amounts of said transfers.       

           

The above and foregoing resolution was adopted by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County  
Iowa, on June 17th, 2025.       

 
 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Copy filed. 
 
12c. Approval to set the level of FY26 at desired amount from gaming (4-2-24 agenda item recommended $200,000) 

died for lack of a motion. Copy filed. 
 
12d. Bittinger rescinded a motion to approve to transfer the unexpensed funds from the Courthouse Repairs and 

Maintenance Function from FY24 ($61,156.81). Item died for lack of a motion. Copy filed. 
 
12e. Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to table approval to transfer the balance of $12,107.58 from the Courthouse 

Foundation Fund to The Courthouse Maintenance fund until further research. Carried 5-0. Copy filed. 
 
13.          Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
14. There were no citizen Concerns.  
 
15. Board concerns were heard. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until June 24, 2025. 
 
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 
  



































WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

6/18/25 6/24/25 4:40

Daniel J. Priestley

The Board of Supervisors will hold a public hearing at 4:40 PM to discuss a proposed Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment to rezone
a 12.32 more or less acre portion of the property owned by New Cooperative, Inc. located on Parcel #864629351012 in the SW ¼
of the SW ¼ of Section 29, T86N R46W (Sloan Township) from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the General Industrial (GI)
Zoning District.

Following the public hearing, the Board may defer consideration of the proposal; or reject the proposal; or proceed to adopt an
ordinance approving the amendment to the zoning district map.

A 60% majority of the Board of Supervisors shall be required to adopt the proposed amendment of the zoning district map if the
owners of more than 20% of either, (a) the area of the subject property or (b) the area of real property lying within 500 feet of the
subject property file a written objection prior to the conclusion of the public hearing.

The Board of Supervisors may impose restrictive conditions upon the approval of an amendment to the zoning district map if, before
the conclusion of the public hearing, the owner agrees to the conditions in writing.

New Cooperative, Inc has submitted an application for a zoning ordinance map amendment to rezone Parcel #864629351012 from
the Agricultural Preservation (AP) District to the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District. The parcel is located just outside the city
limits of Sloan. The company already owns the abutting parcel to the east, which is zoned General Industrial and operates a grain
receiving and loading facility. If the rezoning is approved, NEW Cooperative plans to build a temporary grain storage facility on the
parcel, with a capacity of approximately 1.7 million bushels of corn. The proposed use aligns with the county's land use guidelines,
which allow for grain terminals and elevators in General Industrial zones. The company believes the rezoning is consistent with the
county's future land use plans, which indicate a transition to industrial use in the area. NEW Cooperative is seeking approval to
expand its operations and support the local economy. This proposal has been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal Legals
Section on Tuesday, May 13, 2025. The neighbors within 1000 FT have been duly notified via a May 12, 2025 letter about the May
28, 2025 Zoning Commission public hearing and have been requested to comment. As of the printing of this packet, no comments
or inquiries have been received about the proposal. Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and
organizations have been notified and have been requested to comment. No objections were received from the stakeholders.
Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the
appropriate criteria for approval. It is the recommendation of staff to approve this proposal. The Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to
recommend approval.

PROPERTY DETAILS:
Parcel(s): 864629351012
Township/Range: T86N R46W (Sloan)
Section: 29
Quarter: SW 1/4 of the SW 1/4
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Floodplain: Zone X (Not in floodplain)
Property Address: No address.

a. Conduct the 3rd and Final Public Hearing on the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from Agricultural Preservation
(AP) to the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District on Parcel #864629351012 for New Cooperative, Inc.
b. Approve the 3rd Reading as the Final Reading of the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone)
c. Adopt the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the General Industrial (GI)
Zoning District on Parcel #864629351012 for New Cooperative, Inc.

✔

✔

✔

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

0

Open and close the public hearing. (Set Time: 4:40 PM)

Conduct and approve the third and final reading of the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone).

Adopt the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone)

a. Conduct the 3rd and Final Public Hearing on the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the
General Industrial (GI) Zoning District on Parcel #864629351012 for New Cooperative, Inc.

b. Approve the 3rd Reading as the Final Reading of the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone)

c. Adopt the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District on
Parcel #864629351012 for New Cooperative, Inc.



DRAFT - SUBJECT TO CHANGES THROUGHOUT THE PUBLIC HEARINGS AND READINGS PROCESS 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
 

A ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION MAPPING AMENDMENT 
TO THE WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA ZONING ORDINANCE 

 
 WHEREAS the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, adopted a Zoning 
Ordinance on July 22, 2008, by Resolution No. 10,455 being recorded in the Office of the 
Woodbury County Recorder, and 
 
 WHEREAS the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors has received a report in respect 
to amending the said Ordinance from the Woodbury County Zoning Commission which held a 
public hearing on the amendment; all as by law provided. Which the amendment is attached 
hereto marked item One (1), and hereby made a part hereof; and 
 
 WHEREAS the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors has received said report, 
studied and considered the same, and has held hearings on said amendment, all as by law 
provided; and 
 
 WHEREAS the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors has concluded that the said 
ordinance shall amend the aforesaid Zoning Ordinance; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors, duly assembled, that the aforesaid Zoning District is amended as shown on said 
attached item One (1); and the previous zoning district designation shall be repealed upon the 
effective date of this amendment. 
 
Dated this ____ day of _________, 2025. 
 

THE WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

________________________   

Daniel Bittinger II, Chairman    

      

________________________   

Mark Nelson, Vice-Chairman   

      

________________________   

Kent Carper   

  

Attest:        ________________________  

       David Dietrich 

      

________________________________  ________________________ 

Michelle K. Skaff, Woodbury County Auditor Matthew Ung 

 
Adoption Timeline: 

Date of Public Hearing and First Reading____________  

Date of Public Hearing and Second Reading____________ 

Date of Public Hearing and Third Reading____________ 

Date of Adoption_____________ 

Published/Effective Date____________ 

DRAFT - SUBJECT TO CHANGES THROUGHOUT THE PUBLIC HEARINGS AND READINGS PROCESS   
 
  

 



 
ITEM ONE (1) 

 

Property Owner(s):  New Cooperative, Inc., 2626 First Ave. South, Fort Dodge, IA 50501. 

 

Petitioner Applicant(s): New Cooperative, Inc., 2626 First Ave. South, Fort Dodge, IA 50501. 

 

Pursuant to Section 2.02:4 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, and in accordance with 

Section 335 of the Code of Iowa, the Woodbury County Zoning Commission held a public 

hearing on May 28, 2025, to review and make a recommendation for amendments to the 

Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance and Mapping for the unincorporated area of Woodbury 

County, Iowa as follows: 

 

Amendment to rezone from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District to the General 

Industrial (GI) Zoning District for a 12.32-acre portion of the property located in the SW ¼ of 

the SW ¼ of Section 29, T86N R46W (Sloan Township) in the County of Woodbury and State 

of Iowa.  The property is known as GIS Parcel #864629351012 and is described as: 

WIC TRACT One (1) in the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of the Southwest Quarter 
(SW1/4) of Section Twenty-nine (29), Township Eighty-six (86) North, Range 
Forty-six (46) West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Woodbury County, Iowa, more 
particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Southwest Corner of said Section; thence North Eighty-eight Degrees 
Twenty Minutes Fifty-six Seconds (N 88°20'56") East along the South line of said Section, 
a distance of Two Hundred feet (200.00') to the Point of Beginning; thence North Two 
Degrees Seventeen Minutes Thirty-eight Seconds (N 02°17'38") West, a distance of One 
Thousand Three Hundred Four and Forty-one Hundredths feet (1304.41') to the North line 
of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4); thence North 
Eighty-eight Degrees Fifty-two Minutes Fifty-five Seconds (N 88°52'55") East, along said 
North line a distance of Two Hundred Forty-eight and Three Hundredths feet (248.03') to 
the West line of a tract of land described in a Plat of Survey, filed in Roll 243, Image 1217 
of the Woodbury County Recorder's Office, thence South Sixteen Degrees Four Minutes 
Three Seconds (S 16°04'03") East along said West line, a distance of Nine Hundred 
Twenty-five and Thirty-four Hundredths feet (925.34'); thence South Nineteen Degrees 
Eighteen Minutes Forty-two Seconds (S 19°18'42") East, along said West line, a distance 
of Four Hundred Twenty-five and Eighty-nine Hundredths feet (425.89') to the South line 
of said Section; thence South Eighty-eight Degrees Twenty Minutes Fifty-six Seconds (S 
88°20'56") West, along the South line of said Section, a distance of Five Hundred Ninety-
two and Ninety-seven Hundredths feet (592.97') to the Point of Beginning, containing an 
area of 12.32 acres, more or less. 

 

DRAFT - SUBJECT TO CHANGES THROUGHOUT THE PUBLIC HEARINGS AND READINGS PROCESS 
 
 

DRAFT - SUBJECT TO CHANGES THROUGHOUT THE PUBLIC HEARINGS AND READINGS PROCESS 
 
 



1 

 

 

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING 
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101 

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax) 
Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk 

dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov 
 

REPORT – MAY 29, 2025 
ZONING ORDINANCE MAP AMENDMENT (REZONE) FROM AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION (AP) TO GENERAL INDUSTRIAL (GI)  

APPLICATION DETAILS 
Applicant(s)/Owner(s): NEW Cooperative, Inc. 
Application Type: Zoning Ordinance Map 

Amendment (Rezone) 
Current Zoning 
District: 

Agricultural Preservation (AP) 

Requested Zoning 
District: 

General Industrial (GI) 

Current Use: Agricultural. Not farmed 
Proposed Use: Construct grain storage bunker. 
Average CSR Rating: 59 
Engineer/Surveyor: Veenstra & Kimm (Craig Beedle, 

712-943-5055) 
Attorney: N/A 
Pre-application 
Meeting: 

March, 2025 

Application Date: April 21, 2025 
Stakeholder 
Notification: 

Wednesday, April 30, 2025 

Neighbors’ 
Notification: 

Monday, May 12, 2025 

Legal Publication: Tuesday, May 13, 2025 
Zoning Commission 
Public Hearing: 

Monday, May 28, 2025 

Board of Supervisors 
Public Hearings: 

Tuesday, June 10 at 4:40 PM, 
Tuesday, June 17 at 4:40 PM, & 
Tuesday, June 24 at 4:40 PM. 
Second and third could be waived 
by the Board of Supervisors. 

 

PROPERTY DETAILS 
Parcel(s): 864629351012 
Township/Range: T86N R46W (Sloan) 
Section: 29 
Quarter: SW ¼ of the SW 1/4  
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Floodplain: Zone X (Not in floodplain) 
Property 
Address: 

No address. 

Legal Description: 
WIC TRACT One (1) in the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of the Southwest 
Quarter (SW1/4) of Section Twenty-nine (29), Township Eighty-six (86) 
North, Range Forty-six (46) West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Woodbury 
County, Iowa, more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Southwest Corner of said Section; thence North Eighty-
eight Degrees Twenty Minutes Fifty-six Seconds (N 88°20'56") East along 
the South line of said Section, a distance of Two Hundred feet (200.00') to 
the Point of Beginning; thence North Two Degrees Seventeen Minutes 
Thirty-eight Seconds (N 02°17'38") West, a distance of One Thousand Three 
Hundred Four and Forty-one Hundredths feet (1304.41') to the North line of 
the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4); thence 
North Eighty-eight Degrees Fifty-two Minutes Fifty-five Seconds (N 
88°52'55") East, along said North line a distance of Two Hundred Forty-eight 
and Three Hundredths feet (248.03') to the West line of a tract of land 
described in a Plat of Survey, filed in Roll 243, Image 1217 of the Woodbury 
County Recorder's Office, thence South Sixteen Degrees Four Minutes 
Three Seconds (S 16°04'03") East along said West line, a distance of Nine 
Hundred Twenty-five and Thirty-four Hundredths feet (925.34'); thence 
South Nineteen Degrees Eighteen Minutes Forty-two Seconds (S 19°18'42") 
East, along said West line, a distance of Four Hundred Twenty-five and 
Eighty-nine Hundredths feet (425.89') to the South line of said Section; 
thence South Eighty-eight Degrees Twenty Minutes Fifty-six Seconds (S 
88°20'56") West, along the South line of said Section, a distance of Five 
Hundred Ninety-two and Ninety-seven Hundredths feet (592.97') to the Point 
of Beginning, containing an area of 12.32 acres, more or less. 
 

 

CONTENTS 
Summary  

Aerial Map / Survey 
Excerpt 

 

Applications / Attachments  

Plat of Survey  

Purchase Agreement  

Legal Description  

Proposed Ordinance 
Amendment 

 

Evaluation Criteria  

Legal Notification  

Public Comments  

Stakeholder Comments  

Supporting Documentation  
 

SUMMARY 
New Cooperative, Inc has submitted an application for a zoning ordinance map amendment to rezone Parcel #864629351012 from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
District to the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District. The parcel is located just outside the city limits of Sloan. The company already owns the abutting parcel to the 
east, which is zoned General Industrial and operates a grain receiving and loading facility. If the rezoning is approved, NEW Cooperative plans to build a temporary 
grain storage facility on the parcel, with a capacity of approximately 1.7 million bushels of corn. The proposed use aligns with the county's land use guidelines, which 
allow for grain terminals and elevators in General Industrial zones. The company believes the rezoning is consistent with the county's future land use plans, which 
indicate a transition to industrial use in the area. NEW Cooperative is seeking approval to expand its operations and support the local economy. This proposal has 
been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on May 13, 2025.  The neighbors within 1000 FT have been duly notified via a May 12, 2025 letter 
about the May 28, 2025 Zoning Commission public hearing and have been requested to comment.  As of the printing of this packet, no comments or inquiries have 
been received about the proposal.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and have been requested 
to comment.  No objections were received from the stakeholders.  Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision 
Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval.  It is the recommendation of staff to approve this proposal.  The Woodbury County Zoning 
Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval.  A memo is included in this packet with their recommendation along with draft meeting minutes. 

AERIAL MAP & SURVEY EXCERPT PROJECT CONCEPT 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 

 

 



3 

 



4 

 



5 

 



6 

 



7 

 



8 

 

 





10 

 

 
 



11 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



12 

 

 
 
 



13 

 

 
 

 



14 

 

 
 



15 

 

 

 



16 

 

 
 
 



17 

 

 



18 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

WIC TRACT One (1) in the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of 
Section Twenty-nine (29), Township Eighty-six (86) North, Range Forty-six (46) West of the Fifth 
Principal Meridian, Woodbury County, Iowa, more particularly described by metes and bounds as 
follows: 
 
Commencing at the Southwest Corner of said Section; thence North Eighty-eight Degrees Twenty 
Minutes Fifty-six Seconds (N 88°20'56") East along the South line of said Section, a distance of Two 
Hundred feet (200.00') to the Point of Beginning; thence North Two Degrees Seventeen Minutes Thirty-
eight Seconds (N 02°17'38") West, a distance of One Thousand Three Hundred Four and Forty-one 
Hundredths feet (1304.41') to the North line of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of the Southwest Quarter 
(SW1/4); thence North Eighty-eight Degrees Fifty-two Minutes Fifty-five Seconds (N 88°52'55") East, 
along said North line a distance of Two Hundred Forty-eight and Three Hundredths feet (248.03') to the 
West line of a tract of land described in a Plat of Survey, filed in Roll 243, Image 1217 of the Woodbury 
County Recorder's Office, thence South Sixteen Degrees Four Minutes Three Seconds (S 16°04'03") East 
along said West line, a distance of Nine Hundred Twenty-five and Thirty-four Hundredths feet (925.34'); 
thence South Nineteen Degrees Eighteen Minutes Forty-two Seconds (S 19°18'42") East, along said West 
line, a distance of Four Hundred Twenty-five and Eighty-nine Hundredths feet (425.89') to the South line 
of said Section; thence South Eighty-eight Degrees Twenty Minutes Fifty-six Seconds (S 88°20'56") 
West, along the South line of said Section, a distance of Five Hundred Ninety-two and Ninety-seven 
Hundredths feet (592.97') to the Point of Beginning, containing an area of 12.32 acres, more or less. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



19 

 

 
Figure 1 - Draft - Subject to Changes throughout the review and hearing process. 



20 

 

 
Figure 2 - Draft - Subject to Changes throughout the review process. 



21 

 

EVALUATION CRITERIA 

The Zoning Commission shall base their recommendations and the Board of Supervisors shall base their decision on any requested amendment of 
the zoning district map on the following criteria: 

 Conformance with the goals and objectives set forth in the approved general development plan for Woodbury County including the future land 
use map. 

  
There does not appear to be any conflicts with the Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2040. 
(https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/files/community_economic_development/woodbury_county_comprehensive_plan_2040_89417.pdf).  This 
area is designated as industrial on the future land use map thereby illustrating that this request is compatible with future land use goals and 
objectives for the unincorporated area.  The City of Sloan’s Future Land Use Map includes this is a commercial area with industrial to the west 
and north. Sloan’s map is included in the backup materials below. 
 

 
    

 
 



22 

 

 
CITY OF SLOAN, IOWA – FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

 
 Compatibility and conformance with the policies and plans of other agencies with respect to the subject property.                  

  
There does not appear to be any conflicts with the policies and plans of other agencies based on the information received.  

 
 

 Consideration of the Corn Suitability (CSR) of the property.                  

 

 

This property includes a CSR2 of 59.  The area is qualified for 
consideration of a rezone due to its compatibility with the future land 

use map. 

 
 
 



23 

 

 Compatibility with adjacent land uses.                  

  
The rezone to GI is compatible with the area uses including those of agriculture as it directly abuts a GI parcel and is under New Cooperative’s 
control.   
 

 Compatibility with other physical and economic factors affecting or affected by the proposed rezoning. 

  
There does not appear to be any other additional compatibility issues with this location. 
 

 Any other relevant factors. 

  
New Cooperative owns property both within the City of Sloan and the county.  This expanded use does not appear to be contrary to the county’s future land use 
map and the commercial and industrial plans for the city.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



24 

 

LEGAL NOTIFICATION  

 
 
 



25 

 

  
 



26 

 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION 

Total Property Owners within 1000 FT via Certified Abstractor’s 
Listing: 

133 Properties with over 80 owners. 

Notification Letter Date: Monday, May 12, 2025 

Public Hearing Board(s): Zoning Commission & Board of Supervisors 

Public Hearing Date: Wednesday, May 28, 2025 

Phone Inquiries: 0 

Written Inquiries: 0 

The names of the property owners are listed below.   

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.  
 

 
 

PROPERTY 
OWNER(S) 

 MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS 

City of Sloan PO Box 1   Sloan  IA 51055 No comments. 

City of Sloan 423 Evans St   Sloan  IA 51055 No comments. 
Hanner 
Holdings, LLC 

1903 310th St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Jared W. 
Kenney & 
Allison 
Kenney 

205 6th St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Steven R. 
Richardson 

211 6th St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Connor Beeck 
& Marissa 
Beeck 

609 Evans St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Pauline C. 
Blais 

601 Evans St PO Box 79 
Sloan IA 51055 

No comments. 

Lakeport 
Properties, 
LLC 

1647 320th St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Veronica A. 
Faber & 
Alexander 
Paul Stewart 

602 Evans St  

 Sloan  IA 
 51055-
0232 

No comments. 

Jacob R. 
Hansen & 
Brooke P. 
Hansen 

522 Brown St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Steven M. 
Mareau 

PO Box 358  
 Sloan  IA 

 51055-
0358 

No comments. 

Lee L. 
Haveman & 
Lisa M. 
Haveman 
Joint 
Revocable 
Trust / Ricki D. 
Wiggs 

10005 100th St Lot 
18 

 

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Kevin R. 
Braun & 
Deborah K. 
Braun 

108 Burdick St  

 Salix  IA 51052 

No comments. 

Amazemax 
LLC 

PO Box 5203  
 Sioux City  IA 51102 

No comments. 

Allen 
Silbernagel & 
Sandra 
Silbernagel 

509 Evans St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Alan 
McFarland & 
Arelene 
McFarland 
Joint Living 
Trust 

505 Evans St  

 Sloan  IA 
 51055-
0079 

No comments. 

Steven E. 
Jewett & 
Marla J. 
Jewett 

PO Box 338  

 Sloan  IA 
 51055-
0338 

No comments. 



27 

 

Steven M. 
Mareau & 
Michele K. 
Mareau 

PO Box 292  

 Sloan  IA 
 51055-
0292 

No comments. 

Mike's Repair 
Inc 

PO Box 292  
 Sloan  IA 

 51055-
0292 

No comments. 

Jocelyn 
Murray 

521 Beall St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Sandra K. 
Marnell 

PO Box 206  
 Sloan  IA 

 51055-
0206 

No comments. 

Sierra D. 
Lundberg & 
Chandler J. 
Rickers 

16869 SW 65th 
#317 

 
 Lake 
Oswego 

 
OR 97035 

No comments. 

Stephen Dale 
Spohr 

517 Beall St 
 PO Box 237  Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

New 
Cooperative 
Inc 

2626 First Ave 
South 

 
 Fort Dodge  IA 50501 

No comments. 

A&B Real 
Estate LLC 

1647 320th St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Sloan 
Historical 
Society 

417 Evans St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Berg Building 
Services & 
Rentals LLC / 
Sylvia D. Berg 

3090 Cass Ave  

 Salix  IA 51052 

No comments. 

Bradley J. 
Kobold & 
Rhonda K. 
Kobold 

211 7th St  
 Sergeant 
Bluff  IA 51054 

No comments. 

Burgess 
Memorial 
Hospital 

1600 Diamond St  
Onawa IA 51040 

No comments. 

B-Line 
Logistics, LLC 

PO Box 54  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

The King's 
Closet Inc. 

420 Evans St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Attica Lodge 
502 

418 Evans St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Andrew 
Barner 

416 Evans St PO Box 118 
Sloan IA 51055 

No comments. 

Northwest 
Iowa 
Telephone 
Company 

316 5th St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Frank J. 
Espinosa & 
Elizabetha A. 
Espinosa 

421 Beall St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

John V. 
Stensland & 
Claudia K. 
Stensland 

1635 330th St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Richard O. 
Pope 

415 Beall St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Barbara D. 
Wiggs 

409 Beall St PO Box 121 
Sloan IA 51055 

No comments. 

PR & 
Associate LLC 

424 8th St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Jimmy A. 
Goodin / 
Jacob A. 
Goodin & 
Sheli Goodin 

400 Evans St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Generational 
Investments 
LLC 

75 Columbia Ave  
 Cedarhurst NY 11516 

No comments. 

Landra K. 
Zortman 

451 Glen Eagle Ct  
 Dakota 
Dunes SD 57049 

No comments. 

Barbara D. 
Wiggs 

409 Beall St PO Box 121 
Sloan IA 

51054-
0121 

No comments. 

Community 
Church of 
Christ of Sloan 

502 Beall St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 



28 

 

Stacey L. 
Mitchell 

422 Beall St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Tanner J. 
Deroin & 
Amanda K. 
Johnson 

418 Beall St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Roger Jenkins 
PO Box 89  

 Sloan  IA 
 51055-
0089 

No comments. 

Thomas E. 
Michael & 
Linda L. 
Michael 

410 Beall St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Ryan R. 
Zanter 

402 Beall St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Hubert R. 
Huot & Shelly 
M. Huot 

4114th St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Sloan State 
Bank 

PO Box AC  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Dale B. Smith 
& Lori R. 
Smith 

906 N Shannon Dr  
 Sloan  IA 

 51055-
7757 

No comments. 

Steven M. 
Mareau 

PO Box 358  
 Sloan  IA 

 51055-
0358 

No comments. 

Steven 
Michael 
Mareau 

PO Box 358  
 Sloan  IA 

 51055-
0358 

No comments. 

Ryan M. 
Mareau & 
Ashley M. 
Mareau 

510 Barnard St PO Box 91 

Sloan IA 51055 

No comments. 

Lowell 
Rentals, LLC 

1005 Evans St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Acquire 
Properties 
LLC 

501 Poplar St  
 Sioux City  IA 51052 

No comments. 

Roger W. 
Ward & Sonja 
Ward 

402 3rd St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Edward G. 
Harvey & 
Wanda K. 
Harvey 

PO Box 315  

 Sloan  IA 
 51055-
0315 

No comments. 

Robin T. 
Rockey 

PO Box 34  
 Sloan  IA 

 51055-
0034 

No comments. 

Richard P. 
Benjamin, Sr 
& Charlene 
Benjamin 

305 Barnard St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Jay D. Lutt & 
Angeline M. 
Lutt 

424 4th St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Majorie E. 
Keating Trust 

PO Box G  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Danny Lee 
Robinson 

1515 Goldie Ave  
 Sioux City  IA 51109 

No comments. 

Kari A. 
Oestmann 

320 3rd St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

TBR 
Investments 
LLC 

PO Box 86  
 Salix  IA 

 51052-
0086 

No comments. 

Randy L. 
Mefferd & 
Jackie L. 
Mefferd 

214 Beall St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Randall L. 
Snyder 

210 Beall St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Aaron M. 
Nelson 

322 3rd St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

James P. 
Thompson & 
Mindy K. 
Thompson 

215 Barnard St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Blake A. 
Beauchene & 
Katherine R. 
Beauchene 

201 Barnard St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 



29 

 

Blake A. 
Beauchene & 
Katherine R. 
Beauchene 

6987 Perch 
Hammock Loop 

 

 Groveland  FL 
 34736-
8159 

No comments. 

Ella Belle 
Peterson 
Revocable 
Trust 

PO Box 26  

 Sloan  IA 
 51055-
0026 

No comments. 

Kathy L. 
Lynch 

PO Box 29  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Eunice D. 
Jensen 

PO Box 208  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Kendall R. 
Bauer Trust & 
Rose Elaine 
Bauer 

711 Brown St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Richard K. 
Bauer 

715 Brown St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Terry M. 
Schrank & Jan 
M. Schrank 

10005 100th St Lot 
5 

 
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Pamela J. 
Pomranky 

502 2nd St  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Bradley R. 
Brinkman & 
Jennifer S. 
Brinkman 

118 Barnard St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Union Pacific 
Railroad 

1400 Douglas Stop 
1640 

 
 Omaha 

 
NE  

68179-
1640 

No comments. 

James G. 
Kirkendall 
Credit Shelter 
Trust & Linda 
L. Kirkendall 
Revocable 
Trust 

210 Buckley St  

 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

M P G C 
Incorporated 

1866 Hwy 141  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Richard J.G. 
Patterson 

PO Box 108  
 Salix  IA 

 51052-
0108 

No comments. 

Richard 
Patterson 

PO Box 108  
 Salix  IA 

 51052-
0108 

No comments. 

Michael L. 
Patterson 

1866 Hwy 141  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 

Richard J. 
Patterson 

PO Box 108  
 Salix  IA 

 51052-
0108 

No comments. 

Northern 
Natural Gas: 
Attn: Tax Dept. 

PO Box 3330  
 Omaha NE 

68103-
0330 

No comments. 

Michael Lee 
Patterson 

1866 Hwy 141  
 Sloan  IA 51055 

No comments. 
 

 
 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS 
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments. 

CITY OF SLOAN: No comments. 

FIBERCOMM: No comments. 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments. 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments. 

LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments. 

LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments. 

LONGLINES: No comments. 

LUMEN: No comments. 

MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments. 

MILLER TOWNSHIP: No comments. 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the attached requested rezoning for MEC electric and we have no conflicts. – Casey 
Meinen, 4/30/25. 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments. 

NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments. 

NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments. 

NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request. NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 5/12/25. 

NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments. 

SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments. 



30 

 

WIATEL: No comments. 

WINNEBAGO TRIBE: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No issues here. – Daniel Heissel, 9/3/24. 

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments.  Thank you. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 9/3/24. 

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
(REC): 

No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY SHERIFF: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this request. – Neil Stockflet, 5/7/25. 

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: All certified property taxes are paid. – Tina Bertrand, 4/30/25. 
 

 

PARCEL REPORT 

 



31 

 

ZONING MAP 

 
 

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP 

 
 

 

 



32 

 

ELEVATION MAP 

 
 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

6/18/25 6/24/25 4:45

Dan Priestley

The Board of Supervisors will hold a public hearing at 4:45 PM to discuss a proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to revise
the Land Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses (Section 3.03.4), to classify "Borrow pits for earth materials" as a conditional use
within the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District.

Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance prohibits borrow pits in the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District,
limiting property owners' ability to excavate earth materials for construction, improve land usability, or enhance road safety through
strategic grading. We propose amending the ordinance to allow conditional use permit applications for borrow pits in AE zones, per
Section 2.02.9, enabling case-by-case reviews by the Zoning Commission and Board of Adjustment. This change ensures
community input and evaluates impacts on environment, traffic, and neighborhood compatibility, aligning with county goals. The
amendment promotes equity, as borrow pits are permitted in adjacent Agricultural Preservation zones, and supports agricultural,
safety, and infrastructure objectives while maintaining oversight.

Following the public hearing, the Board of Supervisors may:
(1) Defer consideration of the matter for further study; or
(2) Reject the proposed amendment; or
(3) Adopt the ordinance amending the text of this title.

The Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, specifically Section 3.03.4, prohibits borrow pits for extracting earth materials in the
Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District. This restriction prevents property owners, including farmers, from excavating and
transferring significant volumes of earthen material to support local construction projects. However, strategic grading and dirt
removal in certain county locations could benefit farmers by improving land usability and support regional development by providing
materials for infrastructure. Additionally, excavation in and around right-of-way areas could enhance sight distances and mitigate
snow accumulation along roads, improving safety and maintenance.

The outright prohibition of borrow pits in AE zones may hinder these maintenance and development objectives. Amending the
ordinance to allow conditional use permits application consideration for borrow pits in AE districts would provide a balanced
solution. This change would enable property owners, not limited to farmers, to propose borrow pit projects, subject to review by the
Zoning Commission and Board of Adjustment. The conditional use permit process, outlined in Section 2.02.9, offers community
input opportunities and evaluation based on criteria such as environmental impact, traffic, and compatibility with the surrounding
area.

Allowing conditional use permit application consideration does not guarantee widespread borrow pit development in AE zones.
Instead, it removes the blanket prohibition, enabling case-by-case assessments to determine if a proposed borrow pit aligns with
neighborhood character and county goals. Notably, the current ordinance already permits borrow pit consideration in Agricultural
Preservation (AP) zones, which are often adjacent to AE parcels. This adjacency creates inconsistencies, as borrow pits may be
approved near AE properties but not within them. Amending the ordinance to extend conditional use permit opportunities to AE
zones would create a more equitable and flexible framework.

a. Conduct the 2nd Public Hearing for a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to revise the Land Use Summary
Table of Allowed Uses (Section 3.03.4), to classify "Borrow pits for earth materials" as a conditional use within the
Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District.

b. Approve the 2nd Reading of the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.

✔

✔

✔

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

0

Open and close the public hearing. (Set Time: 4:45 PM)

Conduct and approve the second reading of the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone).

The 3rd and final public hearing and final reading of the ordinance has been scheduled for Tuesday, 7/1/25
at 4:45 PM, respectively.

a. Conduct the 2nd Public Hearing for a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to revise the Land Use
Summary Table of Allowed Uses (Section 3.03.4), to classify "Borrow pits for earth materials" as a
conditional use within the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District.

b. Approve the 2nd Reading of the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND PORTIONS OF ARTICLE 3, SECTION 3.03.4 ENTITLED: 

LAND USE SUMMARY TABLE OF ALLOWED USES IN EACH ZONING DISTRICT. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA THAT THE BELOW ZONING ORDINANCE 

TEXT AMENDMENTS BE MADE: 

Amendment #1:  

The Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Article 3, Section 3.03.4, Land Use Summary Table 

of Allowed Uses in each Zoning District, is hereby amended to revise the classification of 

"Borrow pits for earth materials" from a prohibited use to a conditional use in the following 

zoning district: 

• AE — Agricultural Estates Zoning District 

The Land Use Summary Table (Section 3.03.4) shall be updated to reflect the following: 

• In the row for "Borrow pits for earth materials," replace the designation "--" (Prohibited 

use) with "C" (Conditional use) in the column for the AE zoning district. 

Explanation: this Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment establishes the use of "Borrow pits for 

earth materials" as a Conditional Use in the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District. 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

THE WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Daniel Bittinger II, Chairman 

Mark Nelson, Vice-Chairman 

Kent Carper 

Attest: 

David Dietrich 

Michelle K. Skaff, Woodbury County Auditor Matthew Ung 

Adoption Timeline: 

Date of Public Hearing and First Reading___________   
Date of Public Hearing and Second Reading ___________   
Date of Public Hearing and Third Reading __________   

Date of Adoption ___________   
Published/Effective Date __________   

 



 

 



 













 
 



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DIRECTIVE ON APRIL 29, 2025: 
On April 29, 2025, the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors initiated the consideration of an amendment to 
the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, specifically to revise the Land Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses 
(Section 3.03.4), to classify “Borrow pits for earth materials” as a conditional use within the Agricultural 
Estates (AE) Zoning District.  The following content is provided directly or verbatim from their direction: 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance prohibits borrow pits in the Agricultural Estates 
(AE) Zoning District, limiting property owners' ability to excavate earth materials for construction, improve 
land usability, or enhance road safety through strategic grading. We propose amending the ordinance to allow 
conditional use permit applications for borrow pits in AE zones, per Section 2.02.9, enabling case-by-case 
reviews by the Zoning Commission and Board of Adjustment. This change ensures community input and 
evaluates impacts on environment, traffic, and neighborhood compatibility, aligning with county goals. The 
amendment promotes equity, as borrow pits are permitted in adjacent Agricultural Preservation zones, and 
supports agricultural, safety, and infrastructure objectives while maintaining oversight. Under Section 2.02.3 A 
of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, the Board of Supervisors has the authority to initiate amendments 
to the text. This directive tasks the Zoning Commission to conduct a public hearing to perform their function of 
reviewing the amendment and any supporting information prior to considering and providing their 
recommendation to either approve or disapprove the proposed amendment. Draft Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment attached for consideration. 

 

BACKGROUND: 
The Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, specifically Section 3.03.4, prohibits borrow pits for extracting earth 
materials in the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District. This restriction prevents property owners, including 
farmers, from excavating and transferring significant volumes of earthen material to support local construction 
projects. However, strategic grading and dirt removal in certain county locations could benefit farmers by 
improving land usability and support regional development by providing materials for infrastructure. 
Additionally, excavation in and around right-of-way areas could enhance sight distances and mitigate snow 
accumulation along roads, improving safety and maintenance. 
 
The outright prohibition of borrow pits in AE zones may hinder these maintenance and development objectives. 
Amending the ordinance to allow conditional use permits application consideration for borrow pits in AE 
districts would provide a balanced solution. This change would enable property owners, not limited to farmers, 
to propose borrow pit projects, subject to review by the Zoning Commission and Board of Adjustment. The 
conditional use permit process, outlined in Section 2.02.9, offers community input opportunities and evaluation 
based on criteria such as environmental impact, traffic, and compatibility with the surrounding area. 
 
Allowing conditional use permit application consideration does not guarantee widespread borrow pit 
development in AE zones. Instead, it removes the blanket prohibition, enabling case-by-case assessments to 
determine if a proposed borrow pit aligns with neighborhood character and county goals. Notably, the current 
ordinance already permits borrow pit consideration in Agricultural Preservation (AP) zones, which are often 
adjacent to AE parcels. This adjacency creates inconsistencies, as borrow pits may be approved near AE 
properties but not within them. Amending the ordinance to extend conditional use permit opportunities to AE 
zones would create a more equitable and flexible framework. 
 
Under Section 2.02.3 A of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, the Board of Supervisors has the authority 
to initiate amendments to the text. This directive tasks the Zoning Commission to conduct a public hearing to 
perform their function of reviewing the amendment and any supporting information prior to considering and 
providing their recommendation to either approve or disapprove the proposed amendment. Draft Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment attached for consideration.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS: 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Conditional Use Permit applications for borrow pits are allowed for consideration in only the AP and GI 

Zoning Districts as illustrated below: 

 

 
*This map may not necessarily represent the current districts due to subsequent rezones since 2008. 

 

 

 



AGRICULTURAL ESTATES (AE) ZONING DISTRICT LOCATIONS (ESTIMATE) 

 
*Some parcels may be missing due to software issues. 

 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWED IN THE GREEN AND PURPLE AREAS 

AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION (AP) AND GENERAL INDUSTRICAL (GI) ZONING DISTRICT LOCATIONS (ESTIMATE)  

 
*White Parcels or Regions are missing due to software issues. 

 

 

 

 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROHIBITED IN THE GREEN AREAS 



 
 



 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

06/19/2025 06/24/2025

Mary Chwirka, SC Fire Rescue

Sioux City Fire Resuce is requesting financial support from Woodbury County to purchase life saving equipment to help deal with 
the following: 

"Since one of the main complications of opioid-related overdoses is respiratory depression that can result in hypoxia-related brain 
injury, Sioux City Fire Rescue, (SCFR), is requesting funding for a practice simulator that gives us the ability to practice ventilatory 
assists during scenario-based training. Also for the purchase of a device that attaches to existing equipment for better ventilation of 
a real patient."

-See email from Mary Chwirka, EMS Compliance Officer for Sioux City Fire Resuce for details of the request. 

-See qoute from SafeBVM for a SotairIQ trainer and a supply of the Sotair BVM devices. 

-See pdf of information Securing Opioid Settlement Resources for SafeBVM™: Advancing Opioid-induced Respiratory Depression 
(OIRD)Education, Preparedness and Intervention.

Opioid settlement funding request for additonal life saving devices for Sioux City Fire Rescue rigs. 

✔

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

$3,510 from the Opioid Settlement Fund. 

Motion to approve $3,510 from the Opioid Settlement Fund for Sioux City Fire Rescue to purchase from Safe
BVM a Sotair IQ trainer and a supply of the Sotair BVM devices.

Motion to approve $3,510 from the Opioid Settlement Fund for Sioux City Fire Resuce to purchase from 
SafeBVM a SotairIQ trainer and a supply of the Sotair BVM devices. 



From: Mary Chwirka  
Sent: Tuesday, April 29, 2025 1:29 PM 
To: Daniel Bittinger <dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov> 
Subject: FW: Opioid settlement money Review Please 
  
Supervisor Bittinger – please see the proposal below.  
  
Proposal for Funding through the Opioid Settlement –  
  
Since one of the main complications of opioid-related overdoses is respiratory depression that can result in hypoxia-related brain injury, Sioux City Fire 
Rescue, (SCFR), is requesting funding for a practice simulator that gives us the ability to practice ventilatory assists during scenario-based training. Also for 
the purchase of a device that attaches to existing equipment for better ventilation of a real patient. 
  
Ventilation is a key factor in caring for these patients and responders must have ongoing practice to help with better outcomes for these events. SafeBVM 
company has the SotairIQ trainer that gives real-time feedback on how well an EMS provider is giving this vital ventilation assistance to a patient that is no 
longer capable of providing their own breathing. This company also has a device, Sotair device that attaches to a BVM (bag-valve-mask for manual 
ventilation), that helps in providing the correct length and depth of ventilation thereby optimizing efficiency of providing oxygen to patients during a real-world 
event. The goal is to reduce the damage caused by the hypoxic incident. 
  
Even though we do administer Narcan (Naloxone), patients still need to have respiratory support with manual ventilation, so we are requesting funding for the 
purchase of training equipment, provided by SafeBVM, (see attached quote), for Sioux City Fire Rescue, in accordance with section I. 1 & 2. of the Opioid 
Settlement MOU of approved expenditures. This “hands on” training would augment our scenario-based activities in response to overdose and similar calls. 
We do allow and welcome other response agencies to participate with us during these events.  
Including:  

• Training for the department on response to patients in the acute setting, that may not be breathing due to overdose of opioids within the response 
area. 

• Rapid identification of a patient that has overdosed on opioids  
• Improved skills and response to opioid patients that are not breathing 

• Build muscle memory and proficiency  
• Training for law enforcement and other area first responder entities within the region  

• Safety in dealing with a possible opioid-related emergency event 
  
I’ve attached a much more detailed explanation of why ventilation is so important for patients that have overdosed, along with the quote for the SotairIQ 
trainer and a supply of the Sotair BVM device, that will be carried on all SCFR rigs.  The quote shows an expiration date of 4/20 but the SafeBVM representative 
has assured me that the costs have not changed. Total request for funds: $3,510.00. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me.  
  
Sotair device for manual ventilation: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ISDY7HeCop8  
  
Thank you for your time and consideration - respectfully submitted,  
  
Mary A. Chwirka 
EMS Compliance Officer 
Sioux City Fire Rescue  
Ph: 712-224-5107 
Cell: 712-251-0101 
Fax: 712-224-5108 
machwirka@sioux-city.org 

 
  
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  
This email message and any accompanying data or files is confidential and may contain privileged information intended only for the named recipient(s). If you are not 
the intended recipient(s), you are hereby notified that the dissemination, distribution, and or copying of this message is strictly prohibited and covered by the Electronic 
Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. sections 2510-2521,. If you receive this message in error, or are not the named recipient(s), please notify the sender at the email 
address above, delete this email from your computer, and destroy any copies in any form immediately. 
  
  
  
 

mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ISDY7HeCop8
mailto:machwirka@sioux-city.org


Securing Opioid Settlement Resources for SafeBVM™: 

Advancing Opioid-induced Respiratory Depression (OIRD) 

Education, Preparedness and Intervention 
 

The Emergency Medical Services (EMS) reported more than 214,000 cases of non-fatal opioid-involved 

overdose (NFOO) in the U.S. from September 2022 to September 2023.1-3 One of the main complications 

of opioid overdose, due to Opioid-Induced Respiratory Depression (OIRD), is hypoxia-related brain 

injury. The average reported EMS response time is over 9 minutes, while brain damage due to lack of 

oxygen can start within 4 minutes of OIRD.4 Hypoxia-related brain injuries can result in various 

neurological problems, such as reduced motor skills, mental confusion, memory and cognitive 

impairment, involuntary movements, seizures, and brain swelling.5,6 Furthermore, people who have 

experienced NFOO have a 15.3 times higher risk of developing encephalopathy caused by hypoxic 
injury.7 Unlike hypoxia-related brain injuries caused by traumatic brain injuries, cardiac arrest, or stroke, 

there are currently no products approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) specifically 

designed to prevent, diagnose, or treat brain injuries resulting from NFOO. SafeBVM is uniquely 

positioned to develop and deliver a breakthrough solution specifically addressing OIRD, bridging a 

critical gap in care for non-fatal opioid overdoses. 

 

Ventilation is Critical in Opioid Overdose 

In overdose-related arrests (OA-OHCA), the primary insult is typically respiratory failure—progressing 

through hypercapnia/hypoxia to cardiac arrest. Tissue hypoxia and respiratory acidosis often begin before 

arrest. Therefore, early and effective manual ventilation is crucial to correct hypoxia, help normalize 

acidosis, and prevent secondary organ damage. The latest research shows that standard CPR with 

ventilation results in better OA-OHCA outcomes than chest-compression-only CPR.8 Unfortunately, 

many bystanders and first responders (e.g., police officers, firefighters) feel uncomfortable providing 

mouth-to-mouth ventilation (MMV) or mouth-to-pocket mask ventilation (MPV), which helps explain 

why only 4–15% of opioid overdose patients receive ventilation before EMS arrives.8,20 Even when 

ventilation is given, poor technique can lead to under- or overventilation, each with associated 

harms. Tidal volumes (Vt) exceed 1000 ml in 32% of MPV and 50% of MMV cases, resulting in 

gastric insufflation rates of 52–79%.9 Even experienced providers can struggle to provide optimal 

manual ventilation, with bag valve mask (BVM) usage resulting in unsafe ventilation 81% of the time.10 

Such complications can include gastric insufflation, vomiting and aspiration, barotrauma/volutrauma, 

pneumothorax, and cardiopulmonary compromise,11 all of which further impact patient outcomes. 

 

Naloxone’s Role and Limitations 

Following an overdose, timely intervention is essential to avoid hypoxic brain injury or death. Evidence 

shows that rapid response strategies, including naloxone (e.g., Narcan) administration and rescue 

breathing/ventilation, improve patient recovery and increase survival rates.12 Naloxone is an opioid 

antagonist that rapidly reverses respiratory depression, but it is not a complete solution to OIRD. 

Naloxone can take 2–5 minutes to take effect, has a short half-life, and may require multiple doses—

particularly with potent opioids such as fentanyl.13 Thus, ventilatory support is often needed in addition to 

naloxone. Moreover, naloxone can cause withdrawal symptoms, prompting guidelines to recommend 

using the lowest possible dose to restore breathing.14,15 A recent study found that patients receiving out-of-

hospital naloxone in doses exceeding 4.4 mg were 62% more likely to have a pulmonary complication, 

and the risk of complications rose from 13% to 27% when the initial dose exceeded 0.4 mg.15 Providing 

controlled ventilation may enable lower doses of naloxone to be used, thus reducing withdrawal and 

associated complications while preventing aspiration or prolonged hypoxia. 

 

 



Ongoing Need for Ventilation Despite Naloxone 

Despite naloxone or when naloxone is unavailable, many opioid overdose patients still suffer respiratory 

issues and may require manual ventilation prior to EMS arrival. In these situations, CPR with rescue 

breathing is recommended until EMS arrives,16 and many overdose response kits include pocket masks 

for this purpose.17 Studies of bystander CPR for opioid overdose have shown that provision of CPR leads 

to a lower rate of hospitalization (13.9% vs. 17.7%, p < 0.05) compared with no CPR.18 Demonstrating 

the importance of ventilation, a study of over 10,000 OHCA cases revealed that standard CPR with 

ventilation was associated with improved outcomes in OA-OHCA compared to chest-compression-only 

CPR (adjusted odds ratio: 2.44, 95% confidence interval: 1.05–5.67).8 Notably, this improvement was not 

observed in undifferentiated OHCA cases, indicating that opioid overdose patients especially benefit from 

ventilation. 

 

SafeBVM’s Solutions and Proposed Use of Opioid Settlement Funds 

The Opioid Settlement Funds can be used to purchase SotairIQ and the Sotair® Clinical-Use Solution, 

both designed to enhance manual ventilation safety and effectiveness through flow control, ensuring 

better patient outcomes during emergency first response. 

 

SotairIQ:  

• Build muscle memory & proficiency through coaching and gamified training. 

• Never before seen insights into ventilation parameters. 

• Improved first-responder confidence and skills 

 

Sotair® Clinical-Use Solution: 

• Rapid training and deployment with existing kit 

• Minimizes gastric insufflation 

• “Forcing Function” that offers ventilation consistency across all providers 

 

Developed with grants and contracts awarded by the National Science Foundation (NSF), National 

Institutes of Health (NIH), and Department of Defense (DoD), SafeBVM’s technology is vital in 

uncontrolled prehospital settings, where first responders face stress and limited resources but must 

provide high-quality ventilation promptly. The Sotair flow-limiting valve, FDA 510(k)-cleared, attaches 

to a standard BVM and limits excessive flow and pressures in the airway without venting air. During 

manual ventilation, flow rates exceeding 55 L/min cause the valve to close suddenly generating haptic, 

auditory and visual feedback, guiding the user to correct their ventilation technique. For every unsafe 

breath, this mechanism creates instant resistance and provides audiovisual/haptic feedback to guide the 

user to an optimal ventilation zone. Unlike a pop-off valve that focuses solely on inspiratory pressure, 

Sotair’s flow limitation modulates peak inspiratory pressure based on the patient’s lung compliance and 

airway resistance, helping generate an adequate tidal volume similar to that of a mechanical ventilator.21,22 

Limiting flow also reduces excessive tidal volume and ventilation rates, which in turn helps minimize 

complications such as gastric insufflation, aspiration, barotrauma, and other ventilation-related injuries. 

 

The Sotair is lightweight (14 g), requires no external power, and is compatible with all commercially 

available BVMs, endotracheal (ET) tubes, and supraglottic airway (SGA) devices—making it ideal for 

both trained responders and lay CPR-certified rescuers in opioid overdose emergencies. SafeBVM is thus 

uniquely suited to address the critical gap in care for NFOO by facilitating safer, more effective 

ventilation during the critical minutes in the pre-hospital environment. 

 

 



 

References 
1. MMWR. Patient-Level and County-Level Trends in Nonfatal Opioid-Involved Overdose Emergency Medical 

Services Encounters — 491 Counties, United States, January 2018–March 2022. 2022. 

2. NEMSIS. https://nemsis.org/drug-overdose-surveillance-dashboard/. 2024. 

3. Ahmad FB, Cisewski JA, Rossen LM, Sutton P. Provisional drug overdose death counts. National Center for 

Health Statistics. 2025. 

4. Mell HK, Mumma SN, Hiestand B, Carr BG, Holland T, Stopyra J. Emergency Medical Services Response 

Times in Rural, Suburban, and Urban Areas. JAMA Surg 2017;152:983–4. 

5. Adingupu DD, Soroush A, Hansen A, Twomey R, Dunn JF. Brain hypoxia, neurocognitive impairment, and 

quality of life in people post-COVID-19. J Neurol 2023;270:3303–14. 

6. Lacerte MH, Samadani U, Mesfin FB. Hypoxic Brain Injury. StatPearls [Internet]: StatPearls Publishing; 2024. 

7. Xavier CG, Kuo M, Desai R, et al. Association between toxic drug events and encephalopathy in British 

Columbia, Canada: a cross-sectional analysis. Substance Abuse Treatment, Prevention, and Policy 2023;18:42. 

8. Grunau BE, Lee M, Buxton J, et al. The Association between Bystander-Performed Chest Compression 

Strategy and Neurological Outcomes for Opioid-Associated and Undifferentiated Out-of-Hospital Cardiac 

Arrest. AHA Scientific Sessions and Resuscitation Science Symposium; 2024; Chicago, IL: Circulation. p. 

Abstract LBOr04. 

9. Paal P, Falk M, Sumann G, et al. Comparison of mouth-to-mouth, mouth-to-mask and mouth-to-face-shield 

ventilation by lay persons. Resuscitation 2006;70:117–23. 

10. Ni SA, Carpenter RS, Walker JR, Holley J, Brady MF. Emergency Medical Services Responder Manual 

Ventilation Performance. Prehospital Emergency Care 2022;27(4):496–500. 

11. Braun P, Putzer G, Strapazzon G, et al. Effects of stomach inflation on cardiopulmonary function and survival 

during hemorrhagic shock: a randomized, controlled, porcine study. Shock 2016;46:99–105. 

12. Straus MM, Ghitza UE, Tai B. Preventing deaths from rising opioid overdose in the US - the promise of 

naloxone antidote in community-based naloxone take-home programs. Subst Abuse Rehabil 2013;2013:65–72. 

13. Ali SA, Shell J, Harris R, Bedder M. Naloxone prescriptions among patients with a substance use disorder and a 

positive fentanyl urine drug screen presenting to the emergency department. Harm Reduct J 2023;20:144. 

14. Weisshaar S, Brandt L, Litschauer B, et al. Dose-dependent naloxone-induced morphine withdrawal symptoms 

in opioid-dependent males—a double-blinded, randomized study. Br J Clin Pharmacol 2020;86:1610–9. 

15. Pulmonary Complications of Opioid Overdose Treated With Naloxone Farkas, Andrew et al. Annals of 

Emergency Medicine, Volume 75, Issue 1, 39–48. 

16. Dezfulian C, Orkin AM, Maron BA, et al. Opioid-Associated Out-of-Hospital Cardiac Arrest: Distinctive 

Clinical Features and Implications for Health Care and Public Responses: A Scientific Statement From the 

American Heart Association. Circulation 2021;143:e836–70. 

17. SAMHSA. SAMHSA Overdose Prevention and Response. 2024. 

18. Dietze P, Cantwell K, Burgess S. Bystander resuscitation attempts at heroin overdose: does it improve 

outcomes? Drug Alcohol Depend 2002;67:213–8. 

19. Smiley-McDonald HM, Attaway PR, Richardson NJ, Davidson PJ, Kral AH. Perspectives from law 

enforcement officers who respond to overdose calls for service and administer naloxone. Health & Justice 

2022;10:9. 

20. Ataiants J, Mazzella S, Roth AM, Sell RL, Robinson LF, Lankenau SE. Overdose response among trained and 

untrained women with a history of illicit drug use: a mixed-methods examination. Drugs (Abingdon Engl) 

2021;28:328–39. 

21. Forghani, R, Lane, N, Gumucio, JA, Menegazzi, J, Salcido, D. Relative Efficacy of a Flow-Regulating Safety 

Device versus Pop-off Valves during Simulation of Healthy and Disease-State Lungs. (2025) The Menegazzi 

Scientific Sessions: Research Abstracts for the 2025 National Association of EMS Physicians Annual 

Meeting, Prehospital Emergency Care, 29:sup-S113, S39-S40, DOI: 10.1080/10903127.2024.2425372  

22. Salcido, DD, Forghani, R, Lane, N, Gumucio, JA, Menegazzi, JJ. A Comparison between Manual Ventilation 

with a Flow Control Valve versus a Mechanical Transport Ventilator. Prehospital Emergency Care, S67-S68. 

(2025) The Menegazzi Scientific Sessions: Research Abstracts for the 2025 National Association of EMS 

Physicians Annual Meeting, Prehospital Emergency Care, 29:sup1, S1-S113, S67-

S68DOI: 10.1080/10903127.2024.2425372  

https://nemsis.org/drug-overdose-surveillance-dashboard/
https://doi.org/10.1080/10903127.2024.2425372
https://doi.org/10.1080/10903127.2024.2425372


QTY
12
1

If you have any questions concering this quotation, please call or email :
Email: skiefer@safebvm.com

Phone: 636-346-4905
THANK YOU FOR YOUR INTEREST IN SAFEBVM PRODUCTS

www.safebvm.com

Name: _______________________________
Signature: ____________________________
Date: ________________________________
PO Number(Optional): __________________

$3,510.00TOTAL

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
I hereby accept and authorize this order to be 

processed to and shipped to the address above.

DISCOUNT SCHEDULE FOR PRE-HOSPITAL (2024)

PRICE AMOUNT
$210.00
$900.00
$90.00

Exempt/Taxable

$2,520.00
$900.00
$90.00Estimated Shipping

Tax

DESCRIPTION
Adult Sotair Device (Box of 6)

Sotair IQ (1 Sensor + 1 Test lung + 1 Hardware)

QUOTE #

PREPARED BY
EXPIRES

EMAIL

CELL

50 Milk Street, FL 16
Boston, MA 02109 USA
Phone: 413-400-2055

QUOTATION

machwirka@sioux-city.org

4/11/25
317

4/20/25
Sam Kiefer

skiefer@safebvm.com
636-346-4905

DATE

SHIP TO:
Mary Chwirka 

Sioux City Fire Rescue – Station #1
315 9th Street

Sioux City, IA 51101
machwirka@sioux-city.org

BILL TO:
Mary Chwirka 

Sioux City Fire Rescue 
601 6th Street

Sioux City, IA 51101



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

06-11-2025 06-24-2025

Devan Amick - Woodbury County Fire Association

✔

✔

✔

Request funding for a mental health speaker for first responders

Woodbury County Fire association is looking for assistance with funding to bring in national keynote speaker
Travis Howze to Sioux City to help raise awareness for mental health of first responders.

See attachment about Travis Howze. Multiple non-profits and other governmental bodies are being asked to 
help split the cost of the $30,000 request. 

The total speaking fee is $30,000 but the request is $5,000 only from Woodbury County. $15,000 is needed to 
reserve a date and time for next year's speaking engagements for Travis Howze. 

Fund $5,000 for a mental health speaker for first responders. 

Motion to fund a mental health speaker for first responders in the amount of $5,000 from _____________ 
funds. 



Woodbury County Fire Association Presents Travis Howze 

About Travis Howze 

Travis Howze is an international touring speaker, author, and 

motivational wellness educator who spent 14 years in the 

military and emergency services as a U.S. Marine, Police 

Officer and Firefighter. 

From taking human life to being assigned to the body recover 

team of 9 brother firefighters, including one of his best friends, 

Travis was plagued with extreme Post Traumatic Stress dating 

back to early childhood. With little to no resources available 

during his recovery, he decided to become a resource by 

developing "Post Traumatic Purpose - an empowering, 

educational course and keynote presentation on Leadership, 

Mental Wellness and Resiliency." 

Authentically raw and uncensored, Post Traumatic Purpose 

gives a realistic view of the mental health epidemic that plagues 

our first responders and their families. Travis' transparent 

approach builds a relatability that not only connects with the 

individual responder but their families; including spouses who 

are always encouraged to attend in hopes of promoting career and family longevity. 

His motivational message focuses on mental health; targeting in on signs and symptoms affected 

personnel may be displaying through various behavioral patterns and changes, ways of coping with 

trauma as it applies to the individual, the family and the team. Travis provides a holistic talk by covering 

various available resources, the culture and why many never seek help. He is the author of the Best 

Selling book and top ranked Podcast both titled, "Create Your Own Light." 

For over a decade, he has had the pleasure of speaking and teaching to departments nationwide and 

countless emergency services and mental health conferences, including law enforcement, firefighters, 

clinicians, the FBI, SWAT teams, private mental health organizations, and the top nationally ranked 

university student veterans' program. 

The Woodbury County Fire Association is an Association that is made up of all local Fire 

Departments in Woodbury County. The month of may is mental health awareness. The Woodbury 

County Fire Association is looking at trying to bring in top national keynote speaker Mr. Travis 

Howze in May 2026 to speak on Mental health for first responders. This event will be open to all 

first responders in the tri-state area to help raise awareness on mental health regarding first 

responders. The Woodbury County Fire Association is seeking business’s help to raise enough funds 

to bring Mr. Travis Howze and his show to Sioux City Iowa. The Woodbury County Fire 

Association is a 501 (C) (3) Nonprofit organization. If you or your business would like do donate to 

this event, Checks can be written out to Woodbury County Fire Association. Thank you in advance 

for helping local first responders!  

 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

06/20/2025 06/24/2025

Daniel Bittinger and Mark Nelson

✔

✔

Approval to carryover 80 hours vacation for K.S. to be used within the next year.

Due to business related circumstances, K.S. will not be able to use all accrued vacation hours before they are lost, this agenda item 
is requesting K.S. be able to carryover that time.

According to the Woodbury County Handbook, employees are not allowed to carryover more vacation than they accrue through the 
year and the Board of Supervisor's approval is required to rollover vacation in rare situations. 

0

Approve the motion 

Motion to approve the carryover of 80 hours vacation for K.S. to be used within the next year. 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

06/18/2025 06/24/2025

Laura Sievers, PE, County Engineer

✔

✔

✔

Amendment of Woodbury County Secondary Road Department Five Year Construction Program

Amend the Woodbury County five year construction program to include grant funded bridges in FY 2027

Two bridges on Old Hwy 141 (D-25) are eligible for a new federal grant. The grant would cover 80% of the 
construction cost. The County is required to approve the amended program by June 27 to be eligible. 

The two bridges are each estimated at $1,360,000 to replace. Woodbury County would be responsible for 20% of 
each of the bridges or $544,000 that would come from the County's Farm to Market fund. The grant would cover 
80% or $2,176,000. Hence, no financial impact to the local budget.

I recommend approval of the amended Woodbury County Secondary Road Department Five Year 
Construction Program to allow two bridges to become grant eligible.

Motion to approve the amended Woodbury County Secondary Road Department Five Year Construction 
Program to allow two bridges to become grant eligible.



Generated on 6/18/2025 4:01 PM

County: Woodbury County

Fiscal Year: 2026

Version: 1.0

Iowa Department of Transportation

SECONDARY ROADS FIVE YEAR PROGRAM

COUNTY CERTIFICATION

ATTESTED

IOWA DOT PROGRAM APPROVALS

 The detailed construction program for the secondary road system was adopted by the Board of Supervisors on
Date

County Auditor  Date

County Engineer  Date

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors  Date

Recommended Approval:  
OLS Reviewer Date

Approval:  
Director of Local Systems Date

 SECONDARY ROADS FIVE YEAR PROGRAM 

 Page 1 



 
Accomp

Year
Priority Years

 1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Project Number 
Project Name 
Project ID

Location 
Description of Work 
Section / Township / Range

AADT 
Length 
Federal ID

Status 
FM
Transfer

Day Labor 
Type of Work 
Project Type Fund

FY
2026

FY
2027

FY
2028

FY
2029

FY
2030

Total

L-B(U155)--73-97 On 325TH ST, Over STREAM,
from County Route K67 E 0.1
miles in Section 25 T86N
R45W

47 Previous $0 Local 500     $500
U155 Bridge Replacement miles 320 Bridges FM      
38731 351030 Local Special      

Bridge replacement project -
locally funded

FA      

25 / 86 / 45 SWAP      
DGA-C097(IMN-029-
6(170)139)--XT-97

On 235th Street, Over I-29,
from K25 E 1.4 miles to K45

35 Previous $0 Local      $25,030

Southbridge/235th Street
Interchange Project

1.400 miles 2057 Bridge and
Approaches-
Other

FM      

53393 Grant Special      
Road is not yet constructed.
Functional classification will be
updated upon completion of
ROW acquisition.

FA 2,030     

7 / 87 / 47 SWAP      
BROS-C097(177)--8J-97 On 120TH ST, Over MUDDY

CREEK, from Eastland Ave
east 0.8 Miles on NLINE S17
T89 R45

60 Previous $0 Local      $800
120th St D42 Bridge
Replacement

miles 320 Bridges FM      

32653 355137 FA Special      
Replace existing Bridge D42 FA 800     
17 / 89 / 45 SWAP      

L-B(K20)--73-97 On 180TH ST, Over STREAM,
from IA Hwy 31 0.1 miles in
Section 11 T88N R43W

30 Previous $0 Local  480    $480
Bridge K20 Replacement miles 320 Bridges FM      
25004 353240 Local Special      

FA      
11 / 88 / 43 SWAP      

 SECONDARY ROADS FIVE YEAR PROGRAM 

 Page 2 



 
Accomp

Year
Priority Years

 1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Project Number 
Project Name 
Project ID

Location 
Description of Work 
Section / Township / Range

AADT 
Length 
Federal ID

Status 
FM
Transfer

Day Labor 
Type of Work 
Project Type Fund

FY
2026

FY
2027

FY
2028

FY
2029

FY
2030

Total

L-B(N191)--73-97 On MASON AVE, Over
MILLER CREEK, from 270th
Street South 0.25 Miles on N
LINE S34 T87 R43

15 Previous $0 Local  500    $500
Mason Avenue Bridge miles 320 Bridges FM      
37716 351840 Local Special      

Bridge Replacement of N-191
120' CCS estimated

FA      

34 / 87 / 43 SWAP      
FM-C097(D38)--55-97 On 220th Street, from East City

limits of Anthon E 6 miles to
Safford Avenue

5 Previous $0 Local      $1,800
D38 HMA resurfacing project 6.000 miles 366 HMA Paving FM  1,800    
52212 FM Special      

FA      
32 / 88 / 42 SWAP      

DGA-C097(F-117)--XT-97 On D 25, Over SMALL
NATURAL STREAM, Sec. 24,
T-88N, R-47W

1533 New $0 Local      $1,360
F-117 Bridge Replacement on
Old Hwy 141 (D-25)

miles 2021 Bridge
Replacement

FM  272    

58062 53490 Grant Special      
FA      

24 / 88N / 47W SWAP      
DGA-C097(G-179)--XT-97 On D 25, Over ELLIOT

CREEK, Sec. 31, T-88N, R-
46W

972 New $0 Local      $1,360
G-179 Bridge Replacement on
Old Hwy 141 (D-25)

miles 2021 Bridge
Replacement

FM  272    

58063 53510 Grant Special      
FA      

31 / 88N / 46W SWAP      

 SECONDARY ROADS FIVE YEAR PROGRAM 

 Page 3 

Laura Sievers
Highlight



 
Accomp

Year
Priority Years

 1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Project Number 
Project Name 
Project ID

Location 
Description of Work 
Section / Township / Range

AADT 
Length 
Federal ID

Status 
FM
Transfer

Day Labor 
Type of Work 
Project Type Fund

FY
2026

FY
2027

FY
2028

FY
2029

FY
2030

Total

BROS-C097(B110)--8J-97 On 150TH ST, Over STREAM,
from Jewell Ave E 0.3 miles in
section 31 T89N R43W

20 Previous $0 Local      $700
Bridge B110 replacement miles 320 Bridges FM      
35164 354900 FA Special      

Woodbury County will submit
an ADT waiver for this project.
Thank you.

FA  700    

31 / 89 / 43 SWAP      
BRS-C097(P280)--60-97 On K 64, Over WEST FORK

LITTLE SIOUX, from D54 N 0.8
miles S16 T87 R45

550 Previous $0 Local      $1,800
Bridge P280 replacement miles 320 Bridges FM      
47210 352394 FA Special      

FA  1,440    
16 / 87 / 45 SWAP  360    

L-B(A225)--73-97 On MASON AVE, Over
STREAM, from 120th St N 0.4
miles in Section 8 T89N R42W

10 Previous $0 Local   550   $550
Mason Ave Bridge A225 miles 320 Bridges FM      
35166 354570 Local Special      

FA      
8 / 89 / 42 SWAP      

BROS-C097(P276)--5F-97 On D 54, Over WEST FORK
LITTLE SIOUX, from Grundy
Avenue E 0.2 miles S16 T87
R45

409 Previous $0 Local      $1,800
Bridge P276 Replacement miles 320 Bridges FM      
52209 352396 FA Special      

FA   1,800   
16 / 87 / 45 SWAP      

 SECONDARY ROADS FIVE YEAR PROGRAM 

 Page 4 



 
Accomp

Year
Priority Years

 1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Project Number 
Project Name 
Project ID

Location 
Description of Work 
Section / Township / Range

AADT 
Length 
Federal ID

Status 
FM
Transfer

Day Labor 
Type of Work 
Project Type Fund

FY
2026

FY
2027

FY
2028

FY
2029

FY
2030

Total

L-B(A208)--73-97 On MICHIGAN AVE, Over
STREAM, from 130th Street SE
1.9 miles S28 T89 R42

24 Previous $0 Local    600  $600
Bridge A208 Replacement miles 320 Bridges FM      
52215 354681 Local Special      

FA      
28 / 89 / 42 SWAP      

FM-C097(K-14-10)--55-97 On D 22, Over ROCK CREEK,
from Lucas Ave E 0.2 miles
Section 35 T89 R43

240 Previous $0 Local      $350
K-14-10 Bridge replacement miles 320 Bridges FM    350  
38732 353155 FM Special      

FA      
35 / 89 / 43 SWAP      

FM-C097(K42)--55-97 On K 42, from K45 N 5 miles to
east D53-K42 intersection

5 Previous $0 Local      $3,000
Dallas Avenue - K42 PCC
Rehabilitation

5.160 miles 367 PCC Paving FM    3,000  

45042 FM Special      
FA      

19 / 86 / 46 SWAP      
STP-S-C097(D25)--5E-97 On D 25, from K64 Intersection

to Hwy 141 intersection
5 Previous $0 Local      $3,000

Old Hwy 141 Resurfacing 11.500
miles

366 HMA Paving FM    1,000  

35161 FA Special      
FA    2,000  

10 / 86 / 45 SWAP      

 SECONDARY ROADS FIVE YEAR PROGRAM 

 Page 5 



 
Accomp

Year
Priority Years

 1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Project Number 
Project Name 
Project ID

Location 
Description of Work 
Section / Township / Range

AADT 
Length 
Federal ID

Status 
FM
Transfer

Day Labor 
Type of Work 
Project Type Fund

FY
2026

FY
2027

FY
2028

FY
2029

FY
2030

Total

L-C(X116)--73-97 On 335TH ST, Over Unnamed
stream, from Osceola Ave E
0.5 miles in Section 31 T86N
R42W

10 Previous $0 Local     300 $300
Culvert X116 replacement miles 332 Box

Culverts
FM      

35167 Local Special      
FA      

31 / 86 / 42 SWAP      
L-B(B213)--73-97 On LENOX AVE, Over

STREAM, from 120th Street
South 0.8 Miles, in SW S13
T89 R43

15 Previous $0 Local     220 $220
Bridge B213 Replacement miles 332 Box

Culverts
FM      

36086 354770 Local Special      
Replace bridge with RCB
culvert

FA      

13 / 89 / 43 SWAP      
LFM-(X237)--7X-97 Bridge X-237 on Taylor Avenue

0.7 miles north of 290th Street
25 Previous $0 Local     600 $600

X-237 Bridge Replacement 0.100 miles 320 Bridges FM      
45059 349960 Local Special      

FA      
2 / 86 / 42 SWAP      

L-C(M184)--73-97 On POCAHONTAS AVE, Over
STREAM, from 220th Street S
0.1 miles S5 T87 R42

14 Previous $0 Local     500 $500
Bridge M184 Replacement miles 320 Bridges FM      
52211 351270 Local Special      

FA      
5 / 87 / 42 SWAP      

 SECONDARY ROADS FIVE YEAR PROGRAM 

 Page 6 



 
Accomp

Year
Priority Years

 1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Project Number 
Project Name 
Project ID

Location 
Description of Work 
Section / Township / Range

AADT 
Length 
Federal ID

Status 
FM
Transfer

Day Labor 
Type of Work 
Project Type Fund

FY
2026

FY
2027

FY
2028

FY
2029

FY
2030

Total

BROS-C097(Q18)--8J-97 On 220TH ST, Over FARMERS
DITCH, from Carroll Avenue E
1.4 miles

29 Previous $0 Local      $1,100
Bridge Q18 Replacement miles 320 Bridges FM      
52210 352520 FA Special      

FA     1,100
6 / 87 / 46 SWAP      

 SECONDARY ROADS FIVE YEAR PROGRAM 

 Page 7 



Fund 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 Total
Grant $23,000,000 $2,176,000    $25,176,000
SWAP  $360,000    $360,000
FM  $2,344,000  $4,350,000  $6,694,000
Local $500,000 $980,000 $550,000 $600,000 $1,620,000 $4,250,000
FA $2,830,000 $2,140,000 $1,800,000 $2,000,000 $1,100,000 $9,870,000
Total $26,330,000 $8,000,000 $2,350,000 $6,950,000 $2,720,000 $46,350,000

 SECONDARY ROADS FIVE YEAR PROGRAM 

 Page 8 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

6/17/25 6/24/25

Supervisor Matthew Ung

✔

Approval of retroactive supplemental pay for extra duties performed to the employee filling the appointed 
deputy auditor position from 8-21-24 to 1-1-25 

See title. The recommended amount is due to the board's earlier consensus of the compensation board's 
recommendation--given the extra duties--which was not permissible through that budget process.

Supplemental pay has been defined by the Iowa Supreme Court as “pay based upon extra services and 
directly related to the time, skill, and nature of the additional services.” Fort Dodge Community School Dist. v. 
Public Employment Relations Bd., 319 N.W.2d 181, 184 (Iowa 1982). The Board approved supplemental pay 
on 4-28-20 in lieu of a vacation payout, and on 8-24-22 due to a rare 27th pay period.

Legally, there cannot be any increase to the current annual compensation to the elected Auditor position as set via 
the compensation board and budget process. This method of one-time supplemental pay for the appointed deputy 
Auditor position is allowable and is recommended to be $5,000 in lieu of the former.

The Board has the authority to set supplemental pay for appointed deputies. This should be done only for 
extraordinary circumstances. In this case, then-Deputy Auditor Michelle Skaff fulfilled multiple extra duties 
which were critical for the county to produce and adopt a budget following the death of the budget director, and 
the extended time required to hire and train a replacement.

Approve a one-time supplemental pay bonus of $5,000 to the employee working in the appointed deputy 
auditor position between 8-21-24 and 1-1-25.



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

06/19/2025 06/24/2025

Supervisor Daniel Bittinger

✔

✔

✔

Letters of Support for Agape Comuntiy Services and Moville Community Development Authority 
Inc. 

Agape Community Services and Moville Community Development Authoirty Inc are both applying for grants 
and have requested letters of support from the Board of Supervisors to fullfill grant requirements

See attached letters of support.

None

Motion to approve both letters of support and sign. 

1: Motion to approve letter of support for Agape Community Services. 
2: Motion to approve letter of support for Moville Communtiy Development Authority Inc.






